2023 HOUSE EDUCATION

HB 1271

2023 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Education Committee

Coteau AB Room, State Capitol

HB 1271 1/23/2023

Relating to retired teachers returning to employment

3:24 PM

Chairman Heinert opened the hearing. Members present: Chairman Heinert, Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck, Representatives Conmy, Dyk, Hager, Hauck, Heilman, Jonas, Longmuir, Marschall, Murphy, Novak, and Timmons. Absent: Rep. Hoverson

Discussion Topics:

- Substitute retired teachers
- Teachers Fund for Retirement
- Non contracted substitute teachers
- Contracted retired teachers
- Annual hour limit rule

Rep. Mike Schatz, Dist 39, introduced the bill, Testimony #15525 Janilyn Murtha, Executive Director of Retirement and Investment Office, Testimony #15597 Dr. Aimee Copas, Executive Director of NDCEL, Testimony #15365 Nick Archuleta, President of ND United, Opposition Testimony #19871.

3:47 PM closed hearing

Kathleen Davis, Committee Clerk

2023 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Education Committee

Coteau AB Room, State Capitol

HB 1271 1/24/2023

Relating to retired teachers returning to employment

4:46 PM

Chairman Heinert opened the hearing. Members present: Chairman Heinert, Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck, Representatives Conmy, Dyk, Hager, Hauck, Heilman, Jonas, Longmuir, Marschall, Murphy, Novak, and Timmons, Hoverson

Discussion Topics:

• **C**ommittee Work

Representative Murphy moved a Do Not Pass on HB 1271.

Representative Timmons seconded.

Representatives	Vote
Representative Pat D. Heinert	Y
Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck	Y
Representative Liz Conmy	Y
Representative Scott Dyk	N
Representative LaurieBeth Hager	Y
Representative Dori Hauck	N
Representative Matt Heilman	N
Representative Jeff A. Hoverson	N
Representative Jim Jonas	Y
Representative Donald W. Longmuir	Y
Representative Andrew Marschall	N
Representative Eric James Murphy	Y
Representative Anna S. Novak	Y
Representative Kelby Timmons	Y

Motion carried 9-5-0 on a Do Not Pass.

Representative Murphy carrier.

4:55 PM Meeting adjourned.

Kathleen Davis, Committee Clerk

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1271: Education Committee (Rep. Heinert, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (9 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1271 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

TESTIMONY

HB 1271



HB 1271 – Retired Teachers Returning with no contribution to TFFR 1

2 Testimony in opposition

3 Chairman Heinert and members of the House Education committee, my name is Dr. 4 Aimee Copas, and I am the Executive Director for the North Dakota Council of Educational Leaders representing school leaders across North Dakota. 5

6 I am here to testify in opposition to BH 1271. There are currently three bills in different 7 committees that all focus on ways to allow retired teachers to return to work and receive 8 their retirement benefit. SB2258 and its sister bill HB 1219 both provide for a fiscally responsible way for retired teachers to return to the profession due to teacher shortage 9 issues and to not negatively impact their retirement nor tremendously impact the TFFR 10 11 fund and its progress toward being fully funded. The bill before you today has good intention to allow teachers back into the classroom but is NOT a bill that is fiscally 12 responsible way to do so. In this bill teachers return, retirement continues as in this bill 13 before you today, BUT neither the employer or employee contribute to the fund. This 14 would dismantle and destroy the TFFR fund and in my opinion is not a fiscally 15 responsible use of taxpayer dollars. According to the RIO office, we are set to have TFFR 16 fully funded by 2048. If this bill passes, it will make it impossible for the fund to ever 17 be fully funded. 18

19 Because there are two other bills that provide the option for retired teachers to return and they are both fiscally sound approaches, we'd ask that you give this bill a do not pass 20 21 and consider the others as viable options.

22

NDCEL is the strongest unifying voice representing and supporting administrators and educational leaders in pursuit of quality education for all students in North Dakota.

Representative Mike Schatz House District 39 Testimony for HB 1271

Chairman Heinert and members of the House Education Committee

For the Record, I am Rep. Mike Schatz, from New England, ND and I represent District 39 which is the southwest corner of the state.

HB 1271 is a bill to allow retired teachers, who are substituting at a public school, the right to opt out of having a percentage of their substitute pay go back to the Teachers Fund For Retirement. Currently the retired teacher who is a substitute has money deducted but receives no extra benefit. I feel that this is paying twice for the same retirement check.

The Department of Public Instruction has recorded that there are a large shortage of teachers and of substitute teachers in our state for one reason or another. This bill might entice many of a very large population of retired teachers to come back and substitute. It is a small step, but I feel a step in the right direction.

So Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I hope you will have a favorable view of this proposal and I will stand for any questions that I might be able to answer. Thank You

Rep Mike Schatz

House Bill 1271 North Dakota Retirement and Investment Office (RIO) on behalf of the Teachers' Fund for Retirement Board of Trustees Opposition Testimony related to HB 1271 before the House Education Committee Representative Pat. D. Heinert, Chair Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck, Vice Chair

Janilyn Murtha, JD, MPAP – Executive Director

I. <u>Introduction</u>

The Retirement and Investment Office (hereinafter "RIO") was created by the 1989 Legislative Assembly to capture administrative and investment cost savings in the management of the investment program of the State Investment Board (SIB) and the retirement program of the Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR). Statutory authority for the agency is found in North Dakota Century Code chapter 54-52.5 and the programs are governed by chapters 21-10 (SIB) and 15-39.1 (TFFR).

TFFR is a qualified defined benefit public pension plan. The program is managed by a sevenmember board of trustees which consists of the State Treasurer, State Superintendent, two active teachers, two retired teachers and one school administrator all appointed by the Governor.

The plan covers North Dakota public school teachers and administrators. Benefit funding comes from member and employer contributions (43%) and investment earnings (57%). During the past decade, active membership has increased 16.4% from 10,138 to over 11,800 participants, while retirees and beneficiaries have increased 26.0% from 7,489 to over 9,400.

Our 2022 actuarial valuation projects the TFFR plan to reach 100% fully funded status by 2044. The successful funding path is largely attributable to the statutory changes to the plan, including the creation of a tiered benefit structure and increase in contributions passed by the Legislature in 2011.¹

¹ H.B. 1134, 62nd N.D. Legislative Assembly (2011-2013).

II. Opposition Testimony relating to HB 1271

Attached following this testimony is the analysis performed by the fund actuaries which indicates that if passed, HB 1271 would significantly negatively impact the TFFR plan because instead o being on a path to fully funded status, the fund would never reach 100% funded. The pertinent section of the actuarial analysis may be found on page 2 which states:

"If adopted, HB 23.0374.01000 would increase the active Actuarial Accrued Liability by \$130 million (an increase of 3% of AAL). The funded percentage would decrease by 1.9%. Because of the increase in liability and the decrease in expected payroll, the plan is no longer projected to ever reach 100% funding (as indicated by the "infinite" effective amortization period metric)."²

The TFFR Board of Trustees believes that defined benefit plans provide a valuable recruitment and retention tool for government entities when managed correctly and funded appropriately. TFFR employers are largely school districts which employ both TFFR and Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) members. The TFFR Board recognizes that public pension reform is a major topic under consideration by the 68th Legislative Assembly. H.B. 1039 and H.B. 1040 have been introduced and involve closing the PERS Main Defined Benefit Plan due to concerns over that plans unfunded liability. During the testimony of several individuals at the hearings on those bills last week it was noted that the PERS Main Defined Benefit Plan and the TFFR plan are currently on distinctly different funding paths. While the TFFR plan is projected to reach fully funded status by 2044,³ the PERS Main Defined Benefit Plan is not projected to reach 100% fully funded status.⁴ The TFFR Board recognizes that TFFR's funding success is largely attributable to the plan design and contribution changes adopted by the Legislature through H.B. 1134 in 2011. We note that the changes proposed by HB 1039 and HB 1040 reflect an attempt to correct a funding shortfall for the PERS Main Defined Benefit Plan and hope that the public policy implications of these bills do not extend to defined benefit plans that are projected to reach 100% fully funded status such as the TFFR plan.

The passing of H.B. 1134 in 2011 reflected a concerted effort on the part of our many members, stakeholder groups, and legislators to seek solutions and compromise on plan design changes that would support the TFFR program as a viable and valuable recruitment tool for our North Dakota educators. The success of those compromises is evidenced through TFFR's improved funding status and increased membership. H.B. 1271 would eliminate the viability of the TFFR plan and negate the compromises reached in 2011.

² 1-18-23 letter from Segal Group, Inc. to ED Jan Murtha, Retirement & Investment Office (TFFR).

³ 10-26-22 ND Legislature Employee Benefits Programs Committee meeting, Presentation by the Segal Group, Inc. regarding the July 1, 2022, actuarial valuation of TFFR, p. 28, 29.

⁴ 10-26-22 ND Legislature Employee Benefits Programs Committee meeting, Presentation by GRS regarding the July 1, 2022, actuarial valuation of PERS Main System, p. 33.

III. Summary

The TFFR Board observes that the legislature must pursue some type of change to address the PERS Main Defined Benefit Plan funding shortfall due in part to inaction in prior years. No action is needed to address the funding status of TFFR because of the actions taken by this legislature in 2011. We respectfully submit that the introduction of HB 1271 will nonetheless erode the work accomplished by the 62nd Legislative Assembly to the detriment of the retirement plan for all North Dakota educators. For these reasons the TFFR Board of Trustee's opposes H.B. 1271.



101 North Wacker Drive Suite 500 Chicago, IL 60606-1724 T 312.984.8500 F 312.896.9364 segalco.com

Via Email

January 18, 2023

Janilyn Murtha Deputy Executive Director/Chief Retirement Officer ND Retirement & Investment Office 3442 E. Century Avenue Bismarck, ND 58507-7100

Re: Actuarial Impact Analysis of House Bill 23.0374.01000

Dear Jan:

As requested, we have prepared an actuarial impact analysis on the North Dakota Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR or Fund), regarding the proposed modifications to current TFFR provisions if enacted under HB 22.0374.01000. Under current law, a retired member who returns to teaching is required to pay member contributions. Similarly, participating employers are required to pay contributions on behalf of the rehired retirees.

The proposed bill would allow the following:

- Retired members who return to active service would be able to opt to not pay member contributions, and
- If such a member opts to not pay member contributions, the participating employer would not be required to make employer contributions on behalf of the member.

Such changes would apply to both regular and critical shortage retirees returning to active service, as described in Section 15-39.1-19.1 and Section 15-39.1-19.2 of TFFR's ordinances.

Summary of Actuarial Impact

Because the bill would allow for eligible members to retire and immediately return to work while receiving retirement benefits, the effect of HB 22.0374.01 was modeled by assuming all active members eligible for unreduced retirement will retire immediately and projected payroll for the upcoming fiscal year does not reflect salary for new entrants. In addition, we would anticipate that this change would cause the level of total covered payroll to increase at a much slower rate than currently assumed (current assumption is 3.25% increase per year), or potentially even result in year-over-year decreases in covered payroll. As a result, it would be appropriate to change the basis for determining the actuarially determined contribution rate from level percentage of payroll to level dollar; this change is reflected in the actuarially determined contribution rate and effective amortization period illustrated in the table below:

Plan Year Beginning July 1, 2022	Valuation	HB 23.0374.01000	Increase/ (Decrease)
Actuarially determined contribution rate	12.12%	19.62%	7.50%
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)			
Retired participants and beneficiaries	\$2,606.5	\$2,606.5	\$0.0
Inactive vested members	133.5	133.5	-
Active members	1,722.4	1,852.7	130.3
Inactive vested members due a refund of employee contributions	17.6	17.6	-
Total AAL	4,480.0	4,610.3	130.3
Employer normal cost	98.8	95.8	(3.0)
Fair value of assets (FVA)	\$3,023.9	\$3,023.9	\$0.0
Actuarial value of assets (AVA)	3,133.0	3,133.0	-
Unfunded AAL based on FVA	\$1,456.1	\$1,586.4	\$130.3
Funded percentage on FVA basis	67.5%	65.6%	(1.9%)
Unfunded AAL based on AVA	\$1,347.0	\$1,477.3	\$130.3
Funded percentage on AVA basis	69.9%	68.0%	(1.9%)
Effective amortization period on an AVA Basis	19	Infinite	N/A
Projected Annual Payroll for Fiscal Year Beginning July 1	\$810.0	\$733.4	(\$76.60)
¢ in Millions			

\$ in Millions

Change in Plan Costs

If adopted, HB 23.0374.01000 would increase the active Actuarial Accrued Liability by \$130 million (an increase of 3% of AAL). The funded percentage would decrease by 1.9%. Because of the increase in liability and the decrease in expected payroll, the plan is no longer projected to ever reach 100% funding (as indicated by the "infinite" effective amortization period metric). The proposed bill would have a significant impact on ND TFFR's actuarial valuation.

Janilyn Murtha ND Retirement & Investment Office January 18, 2023 Page 3

Note that the analysis of the proposed bill assumes that it will have no actuarial impact on deferred vested participants. That is because the actuarial valuation already assumes that 100% of deferred vested participants retire at their earliest available unreduced retirement age.

Actuarial Assumptions

For purposes of this analysis, the AAL amounts are calculated using the actuarial assumptions and plan provisions as described in the Actuarial Valuation Report and Review as July 1, 2022, for TFFR, dated October 20, 2022, for illustrative purposes unless stated otherwise. Active members as of July 1, 2022, that are currently eligible for unreduced retirement are assumed to retire immediately. Remaining active members are assumed to retire at the first age they reach eligibility for unreduced retirement. Any proposed legislation would not change the July 1, 2022, actuarial valuation results, and these are used as a proxy for the effect on plan costs.

Segal valuation results are based on proprietary actuarial modeling software. The actuarial valuation models generate a comprehensive set of liability and cost calculations that are presented to meet regulatory, legislative and client requirements. Our Actuarial Technology and Systems unit, comprised of both actuaries and programmers, is responsible for the initial development and maintenance of these models. The models have a modular structure that allows for a high degree of accuracy, flexibility and user control. The client team programs the assumptions and the plan provisions, validates the models, and reviews test lives and results, under the supervision of the responsible actuary.

Certification

Use of this information is subject to the caveats and limitations of use described in the July 1, 2022, actuarial valuation report. This report has been prepared in response to a request from the North Dakota Retirement & Investment Office on behalf of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee of the North Dakota Legislature.

The signing actuaries are members of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion contained herein.

Please let us know if you have any questions, comments, or concerns.

Sincerely,

Matthew A. Strom, FSA, MAAA, EA Senior Vice President and Actuary

Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, FCA, EA Vice President and Consulting Actuary

Tanya Dybal, FSA, MAAA, EA Vice President and Actuary



Great Public Service

v Refore the House Education

Testimony Before the House Education Committee HB 1271 January 23, 2023

Chairman Heinert, Vice Chair Schreiber-Beck and members of the Committee, I am Nick Archuleta, president of North Dakota United. On behalf of our 11,500 members, I rise today to urge very respectfully a *do not pass* recommendation for HB 1271.

I have no doubt that the author and sponsors of HB 1271 submitted this bill with the very best intentions. The teacher shortages we see across the state are alarming and I applaud their attempt to help mitigate that shortage. However, HB 1271, we believe, is flawed in that in attempting to solve one problem, it exacerbates another.

Our concern is the effect that this piece of legislation will have on the Teacher Fund for Retirement (TFFR) should its provisions be enacted into law. If a teacher returns to teaching, while drawing benefits, that individual is taking the place of a teacher who would otherwise be paying into the TFFR. The solvency of the fund is dependent on investment returns, employer contributions, and employee contributions. Without employee or employer contributions, insolvency is hastened and an important tool for the recruitment and retention of future education professionals is removed.

Again, Mr. Chairman, we appreciate the good intentions of the sponsors of HB 1271 but due to its serious unintended and deleterious impact on the TFFR, we cannot support it. Therefore, Chairman Heinert and members of the Committee, we strongly and respectfully urge a *do not pass* recommendation for HB 1271.